
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., July 26, 2022 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Friday, July 15, 2022 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, July 24, 2022 

            

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – July 08, 2022 

                           

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S)                                                                                      

                                                                                 

IV.    NEW BUSINESS  

1. Contract Amendment No. 1………………………………………………………………           1 - 3 

IFB#GHURA-01-27-2022-AMPs 1, 2, 3 & 4; Renovation of Seven Public  

Housing Units 

2. Change Order ………………………………………………………………………………….            

Inarajan Basketball Court 

3. Intent of Award ……………………………………………………………………………...            4 - 13       

RFP#GHURA-COCC-022-001; Legal Counsel Services 

4. Resolution No. FY2022-013 ……………………………………………………………          14 - 15   

Resolution to approve the appointment of Mr. Fernando B. Esteves 

as Deputy Director 

 

 

 V.    CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 

1. Family Self-Suffiency (FSS) Program Activity Report ……………………           16 - 27   

 

 

 

 VI.    EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

                                                                                                                                            
  

 

 



 

 

 

 

 VII.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1 .   Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Friday, August 12, 2022 

 @ 12:00 p.m. 

    
 Commissioners will attend the next scheduled GHURA BOC meeting via: 
 
   Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman               □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner                         □ Video Conference          □ In-person 
   Anisia Delia, Commissioner                              □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Nate Sanchez, Commissioner                           □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Emilia Rice, Commissioner                               □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
   Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner          □ Video Conference          □ In-person  
 

                  Acknowledged by Chairman Rivera _______     Date: _________ 
 
 

 

 VIII.   ADJOURNMENT   







GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2022                                                                                  Page 1 of 12 
 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., July 08, 2022 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the                    
Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board 
meeting was called to order at 12:00 P.M. Friday, July 8, 2022, at the GHURA Sinajana 
Main Office, 1st floor Conference room, by Chairman Rivera. He indicated that 7 
members of the Board of Commissioners were present, representing a quorum and that 
the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 

 
PRESENT: 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman (in person) 
Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman  
(via zoom) 
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner  
(in person) 
Anisia Delia, Commissioner  
(via zoom) 
Nate Sanchez, Commissioner  
(in person) 
Emilia Rice, Commissioner (via zoom) 
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner 
(via zoom) 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Anthony Perez, Esq. (via zoom) 
 

 
MANAGEMENT & STAFF: 
Elizabeth Napoli, Executive Director 
(Acting) 
Audrey Aguon, Deputy Director (Acting) 
Katherine Taitano, CD Chief Planner 
Kim Bersamin, HR Administrator 
Frances Danieli, Controller (Acting) 
Alina Butler, ROSS Coordinator 
Nicole Alejandro, CFP Staff 
Michael Racuyal, AE Staff  
 
PUBLIC:  
 

 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Thursday, June 30, 2022 
 2nd Printing – Wednesday, July 06, 2022 

          ACKNOWLEDGED by the board.  

 

Chairman Rivera indicated that the original GHURA BOC meeting date of June 

24, 2022 was cancelled due to the lack of quorum.  

  



GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2022                                                                                  Page 2 of 12 
 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – June 06, 2022 

[060/22] Commissioner Ishizaki moved to approve the minutes of the  

June 6, 2022 BOC meeting subject to corrections. Commissioner Sanchez seconded the 

motion. There were no objections by the other board members. Motion passed. 

 

Before moving onto New Business, Chairman Rivera stated that on behalf of the GHURA 

board and everyone at GHURA, he expressed his deepest condolences to the family of 

the late Lucele Leon Guerrero, GHURA’s FISCAL Controller. He stated that Mrs. Leon 

Guerrero dedicated her life and time to serve GHURA and its people. He requested for a 

moment of silence in her honor.  

 

Vice Chairwoman Guzman suggested that GHURA staff invite a clergyman to bless the 

main office which may bring some feeling of comfort to the employees.  

 

Chairman Rivera thanked the Vice Chair for her suggestion and added that the Board of 

Commissioners offer their full support to the GHURA staff during this difficult time. 

            

                Director Napoli added that Dr. Bersamin, HR Administrator, made certain that the staff has   

                access to the grief counseling that the employees may need.  

                                                           

                                                                        

IV.    NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2022-TA-001 

[061/22] Director Napoli stated the following: 

• Resolution Authorizing off-island travel for the ROSS Service Coordinator to 

attend the 2022 National Service Coordinator Conference on August 14-17, 

2022 in Anaheim, California.  

• The authority’s travel policy requires advanced authorization from the 

GHURA Board of Commissioners 

• The training is to strengthen and improve the ROSS Service Coordinator’s 

skills and knowledge necessary to promote independent living among its 

participants. 

• The subject training request is an eligible expenditure under FY2021 ROSS 

NOFA and according to LOCCS is sufficient funding available under the 

training budget line item. 

• BOC authorizes the use of the ROSS service coordinator program grant 

funds to finance the costs associated with travel and training, including 

registration fee, continuing education units, airfare, lodging, per diem 

and ground transportation for an estimated total of $4592.31. The 

following is a breakdown of costs: 

1. Registration fee:    $865.00 

2. CEU Credits:    $35.00 

3. Lodging Estimate:   $1508.76 



GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2022                                                                                  Page 3 of 12 
 

4. Airfare Estimate:   $1672.55 

5. Ground Transportation:  $100.00 

6. Meals and Incidental Expenses: $411.00 

____________________________________________________________________ 

             TOTAL: $4592.31 

 

• The ROSS service coordinator, Alina Butler, has done an excellent job in 

making sure that she is performing her duties and responsibilities to 

provide the needed services to the elderly population at the GHURA elderly 

sites.  

• Miss Alina Butler has recently earned her Masters Degree in Social Work. 

Vice Chairwoman Guzman indicated that at some point in the past, the board approved a 

resolution for travel that did not require board approval. Director Napoli stated that she did 

not recall that resolution but believed that what is required in Miss Butler’s case is that she 

does need approval form HUD, the program that oversees her expenses, so it’s an approved 

expenditure under her program. Her budget must include whatever she projects for the 

program year. Vice Chairwoman Guzman requested that the board look at past board 

minutes that included discussions on travel requirements. Chairman Rivera stated that it 

would be looked into further.  

There were no further discussions. 

[062/22] Vice chairwoman Guzman moved to approve Resolution No. FY2022-TA-001, 

authorizing off-island travel for the ROSS Service Coordinator to attend the 2022 

National Service Coordinator Conference in Anaheim, California on August 14, 2022.  

Commissioner Ishizaki seconded the motion. With no objections by the other board 

members, the motion passed.  

2. Intent of Award  

Renovation of (13) Thirteen Public Housing Unit’s; IFB#GHURA-05-26-2022-AMPs 

2, 3 & 4 

 

[063/220] Director Napoli stated the following: 

• Bid opening was held on June 24, 2022, at 2pm. 

• (5) contractors purchased a set of bid specifications 

• (4) submitted bids 

• Bids were opened and read out loud: 

1. Genesis Tech Corp.- submitted 15% Bid bond, bid on Base Bid #3 at 

$298.500. 

2. Surface Solutions-submitted 15% Bid bond, bid on Base Bid #1 at 

$164,881.88, and bid on Base Bid #2 at $21,225.86. 

3. JRJ Construction Inc.- Did not submit a bid bond. Bid on Base Bid #1 

at $99,318. 



GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2022                                                                                  Page 4 of 12 
 

4. OH Construction- included 15% Bid bond. Bid on Base Bid #1 at 

$161,000, Base Bid #2 at $17,000, and Base Bid #3 at $264,000. 

• Government estimates: 

o Base Bid #1 was $183,330- renovate a total of (4) units at AMP4 -

Toto Gardens (3) and Dededo (1) 

o Base Bid #2 was $15,000- renovate a total of 2 units in AMP2, Yona 

o Base Bid #3 was $255,332.50- renovate (7) at AMP3, (4) in Agat and 

(3) in Umatac 

o Modernization of the units include: electrical upgrades, replacement 

of termite infested kitchen cabinets and base, retiling floors, 

complete sewer line replacement, interior painting, exterior and 

interior door replacements and replacement of existing water lines.  

• The review of the bid results OH Construction provided the lowest 

responsive and responsible bid for Base bids 1, 2, and 3. 

• OH Construction had completed several GHURA projects over the last year 

with good standing and has been cleared by the DOL compliance, OSHA, and 

EPLS Debarred list.  

• Based on AE’s staff review and determination, GHURA requested approval to 

issue the contract to OH Construction for Base bid #1, Base bid #2, and Base 

bid #3, in the total amount of $442,000. 

• Funding is available under the Capital Fund program. 

Commissioner Corpus inquired about whether the painting of the units would include 

painting the roof tops and if so, would the type of paint used be reflective paint or anti-mold 

paint. Director Napoli stated that the scope of work only includes interior painting.  

Commissioner Sanchez inquired about whether the issue regarding OH Construction’s DOL 

violation of not paying their employees was settled. Director Napoli confirmed that it had 

been cleared by DOL for compliance.  

Chairman Rivera inquired about whether painting the interior of units with mold coating 

should be something that GHURA should be considering. Mr. Michael Racuyal, AE staff, stated 

that mold occurs when there is high humidification. Units to be painted are based on AE staff 

inspections and added that should the exterior of the seven units or units at other locations 

need repainting, it will be included in the scope of work. However, for the (7) units, AE did 

not include repainting into the scope of work.  

There were no further discussions. 

[064/22] Commissioner Delia motioned to approve the Intent of Award for the 

renovation of (13) public housing units, IFB #GHURA -0526- 2022 for AMPS 2, 3, and 4 

to OH Construction for Base Bids 1, 2, and 3 in the amount of $442,000. Commissioner 

Sanchez seconded the motion. With no objections by the other board members, the 

motion passed.  



GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2022                                                                                  Page 5 of 12 
 

 

 

3. Resolution No. FY2022-011, Resolution approving the Write-off of Tenant 

Accounts Receivable. 

[065/22] Director Napoli stated the following: 

• Resolution number FY 2022 Dash 011 is the resolution approving the write-off 

of tenant accounts receivable. 

•  Guam Housing and Urban Renewal authority is the Guam public housing 

authority that provides Decent Homes and suitable living environments for 

families of low income to afford to pay for safe, sanitary, and decent dwelling 

accommodations. 

• the governance and wellbeing of GHURA is vested in the Board of 

Commissioners and empowered by 12 Guam Code Annotated chapter five 

session 5104  

• The Board of Commissioners resolution number FY 2018-002, the resolution 

adopting the wright off policy for uncollectible accounts for girl rental 

properties. 

• The normal course of business, the authority is involved in transactions that 

result in monies being owed to GHURA for which they are unable to collect. 

• As necessary, the property site managers submit summaries of deaths 

considered for write off to prevent overstating of assets, which are affecting the 

authority’s financial performance. 

• Currently, gross receivables include outstanding accounts which have remained 

in GHURA’s books for over 90 days as of March 31, 2022. 

o AMP 1 write off amount is $10,298.25. 

o AMP 2 write off amount is $7,210.98 

o AMP 3 off amount is $11,946.26. 

o AMP 4 write off amount is $24,512.96 

o Cumulative total of $53,968.45 in write off amounts 

• GHURA, through the property site managers exert diligent collection efforts in 

pursuit of outstanding receivables. 

• GHURA reserves the right and duty to collect should the opportunity arise. 

• It is in accordance with GHURA procedure and good business practices to write 

off accounts receivables, after all reasonable collection procedures have been 

exhausted, and there is not a reasonable expectation that the accounts will be 

collected. 

• Therefore, the Board of Commissioners approves writing off $53,968.45 of 

GHURA receivables after all reasonable collection procedures have been 

exhausted.  



GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2022                                                                                  Page 6 of 12 
 

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about the number of units in each AMP to further 

understand GHURA’s losses per unit. Director Napoli stated that there are 750 public housing 

units in total. She added that she would obtain the exact number at each AMP and provide it 

to the board. 

Chairman Rivera asked how this write-off compared to previous write offs. Director Napoli 

stated that she believes that this year’s write off is slightly higher than prior write off reports. 

She added that many factors were included in the pandemic circumstances, such as job loss 

or the abandonment of the unit. The GHURA staff does its best to collect from tenants, but at 

times are unsuccessful. Even if GHURA can write it off these amounts, the names and the 

amounts owed to GHURA, are forwarded to the Department of Revenue and Taxation. The 

Department of Revenue and Taxation garnishes any tax refunds, and this is how GHURA 

receives reimbursement for uncollected monies.  

Chairman Rivera requested that a report that reflects a breakdown of previous write offs to 

compare with the current numbers be provided to the board. Director Napoli acknowledged 

Chairman Rivera’s request. 

Commissioner Delia inquired about when write off reports are completed and submitted. 

Director Napoli indicated that she believes that the report is done once a year. However, it 

depends on the accounts receivables that are uncollected. Fortunately, HUD had taken the 

pandemic circumstances into consideration and has waived the AMP sites scores for 2020 

and 2021, as uncollected monies affect the AMP sites score.   

Commissioner Sanchez inquired about some of the reasons why funds would not be 

collected. Director Napoli stated that the reasons vary. Property site managers have 

expressed that tenants would often choose to be non-compliant even after signing a 

promissory note. There have been instances where a tenant has abandoned a unit and 

GHURA is unable to collect the monies owed, therefore creating an accumulation of arrears in 

that tenant’s name. She added that once a tenant has a noncompliance record with GHURA, it 

is filed for about five years. It makes the vetting process for the tenant difficult to re-enter the 

program. GHURA must also be diligent in the vetting process due to its audit requirements.  

There were no further discussions.  

[066/22] Commissioner Sanchez moved to approve Resolution No. FY2022-011, 

resolution approving the Write-off of Tenant Accounts Receivables. Commissioner 

Delia seconded the motion. There were no objections by the other board members. 

The motion passed. 

4. Resolution No. FY2022-012 -Resolution to approve the appointment of Ms. 

Elizabeth F. Napoli as Executive Director. 

[067/22] Chairman Rivera stated that Resolution No. FY2022-012 is pursuant to the 

authority of the Governor under 12GCA -5103 with the nomination of Elizabeth F. 



GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2022                                                                                  Page 7 of 12 
 

Napoli to serve as Executive Director of GHURA. He asked that Ms. Napoli address the 

board.  

Ms. Napoli stated that the support of the Leon Guerrero/Tenorio administration in 

coordination and alignment with GHURA’s mission has been her daily motivation in the 

leadership position that she has been entrusted with. She stated that she is cognizant of the 

fact that she is a public servant and believes that how she has executed her duties and 

responsibilities for the past three and a half years exemplified that she is committed, as was 

the late director Ray, to making a difference in the lives of the low to moderate income 

families that they are here to serve. She added that she is honored to have worked in 

partnership with the late predecessor Ray Topasna. He is dearly missed by all of GHURA for 

his excellent leadership, his genuine friendship, and the support that he really provided to all 

of the staff. She added that she will always remember that when he was complimented about 

his innovative ideas and brilliance, he would just shrug it off and say that he only looked 

smart because he surrounded himself with smart people.  She indicated that one of the 

reasons they worked well together was because they never underestimated the talent and 

the dedicated employees at GHURA, the most valuable asset of the agency. She added that she 

will continue to pursue the possibilities that Mr. Topasna envisioned in various areas, to best 

serve our island family community. 

Attorney Tony Perez clarified that the mechanism was not a gubernatorial appointment. 

What the Governor did was nominate Ms. Napoli, but the prerogative for her employment is 

strictly the province of the board. He added that Ms. Napoli has done a great job and 

continues to do so.  

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about Ms. Napoli’s educational and career accomplishments. 

Ms. Napoli stated that she received her Bachelor’s degree in Communication Disorders from 

the University of California at Santa Barbara. She also received her Master’s degree in 

Communication Disorders from San Francisco State University. Later she was employed with 

the Government of Guam from 1991 to the present. Prior to returning to government of 

Guam in 1991, she lived off Island for 12 years and for seven years, worked in downtown San 

Francisco for an Exxon Corporation office automation company. Upon returning to Guam, she 

worked under Carl Peterson as the customer services manager. She has had much experience 

with administrative and customer service background which she utilizes in her current 

position.  

There were no further discussions. 

[068/22] Commissioner Sanchez motioned to approve Resolution No. FY2022-012, the 

resolution to approve the appointment of Ms. Elizabeth F. Napoli as the Executive 

Director of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority. Commissioner Corpus 

seconded the motion. There were no objections by the other board members. 

Chairman Rivera announced with great pleasure the approval of Resolution No. 



GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2022                                                                                  Page 8 of 12 
 

FY2022-012, the appointment of Ms. Elizabeth F. Napoli as the Executive Director of 

GHURA.  

Chairman Rivera thanked Governor Leon Guerrero and Lieutenant Governor Tenorio 

for their nomination of Director Napoli and added that the resolution states that she is 

empowered by the Lord and serves at the pleasure of the board. He encouraged 

Director Napoli to continue to keep the people first and foremost in her mind. He also 

reminded her that the next five years for GHURA is going to be a critical time and to 

keep the GHURA staff in her mind as the board continues to support her and the efforts 

of the GHURA staff.  

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about whether this board packet will be sent to 

the legislature. Attorney Perez stated that Director Napoli does not require legislative 

confirmation as the GHURA board controls the process.  

5. Intent of Award - RFP#GHURA-COCC-022-001; Legal Counsel Services 

 

[069/22] Director Napoli deferred this item to Ms. Greta Balmeo, Buyer 

Supervisor.  Ms. Balmeo respectfully requested to table the Intent of Award 

RFP#GHURA-COCC-022-001, Legal Counsel Services to the next scheduled board 

meeting. She stated that she would have to revisit with the selection committee 

to finalize an item on the RFP for this award.  

 

[070/22] Chairman Rivera stated that the Intent of Award RFP#GHURA-COCC-

022-001; Legal Counsel Services would be tabled.  

 

 V.    CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 

1. ROSS Program & Status Report  

 

   [071/22] Miss Alina Buter, ROSS Service Coordinator, stated the following: 

• Service Coordinator of the Resident Opportunity and Self-Sufficiency Program 

(ROSS) beginning in November 2021 

• Activities from November 2021 to May 2022 

• Purpose- to provide funding to hire and maintain service coordinators who will 

assess the needs of residents, ages 62 years or older and persons of disabilities, 

of PH and coordinate available resources in the community.  

• Objective- to help resident population continue to live and age in place 

independently without having to move assisted care environments. 

• It is accomplished through- case management, connecting residents to needed 

services and providing outreaches to encourage engagement and decrease 

social isolation. 

• Online tracking is done through software called Ask Online, designed 

specifically for service coordinators 



GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2022                                                                                  Page 9 of 12 
 

• Common services provided are:  

o outreach, isolation intervention, intergenerational activities, 

relationship building, and socialization. 

o Home Management- involves donations received and distributed to 

program participants, assisting with bills, and assisting with applying for 

emergency rental assistance and Progaman Salape.  

o Health care and services- includes assessments for fall prevention, 

medication management, assistive technology, providing information on 

COVID 19 testing and Vaccine information, nutrition and wellness 

education. 

• There are 67 active ROSS participants in AMP 4 

• There are 57 in AMP 3 

• There are 25 in AMP 2 

• There are 20 in AMP 1 

• More participation has been with AMPs 3 and 4, goal is to sign up new residents 

or re-enroll past participants in AMPs 1 and 2 

• Recent partners are Guam System for Assistive Technology and CEDDERS; 

services provided were canes, walkers, or wheelchairs on short-term loans 

• Another partner is UOG. The Geriatric Workforce Enhancement Program 

(GWEP), led by Dr. Margaret Hatori Uchima, Dean of the School of Health, 

provide presentations to ROSS participants monthly. 

• Cooperative Extension Program- the SNAP ED provide lessons on nutrition and 

healthy aging. Participants receive a Certificate of Completion.  

• Holiday Activities: 

o included working with Southern High School’s Nation Honor Society. 

They provided a holiday dinner.  

o Ross Necessities Donation Drive- agency donated items most requested 

by the ROSS participants. 

o Intergenerational Gifts of the Hand- Ross coordinated with the GDOE 

schools to provide homemade cards or art projects gifts for those 

participants in the Ross program. The intent is to increase self-esteem 

and life satisfaction while decreasing feelings of loneliness and isolation 

among the elderly while also increasing a sense of responsibility and 

empathy in our youth.  

• Monthly ROSS Newsletter- newly implemented. To provide updates on 

upcoming events and outreach programs to the ROSS participants. 

• Training for the ROSS Service Coordinator: 

o Attended the National Association of Social Workers, Guam Chapter 

Regional Conference on Coping through Crisis.  

o Attended training on Ethical Decision Making, Cultural Humility, and the 

Importance of Culture with Service Delivery 



GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2022                                                                                  Page 10 of 12 
 

o Attended the American Association of Service Coordinators on Social 

Isolation, Mindful Communication, and Self Determination 

o Attended the Guam System for Assistive Technology Fair along with FSS 

and MFS. They were able to establish partnerships with other programs 

from UOG.  

• Upcoming Events and News- (2) Senior Bachelor of Social Work interns will join 

the ROSS program in the summer and spring semesters. Their tasks will include 

assisting with outreach event planning, working with partner agencies, 

introduction to case management, and gaining experience with reporting and 

grant evaluation as well as gaining experience working with the vulnerable 

populations. Miss Butler will serve as the Supervisor and Ms. Francesca Gatuz 

will serve as the Field Instructor.  

• Annual Reports are due in October. ROSS is currently conducting their needs 

assessment for the grant renewal. Areas of need that have been identified are 

education, financial literacy, health and wellness, employment, and services for 

elderly or persons with disabilities.  

• Long Term Goals- Provide Digital Literacy Programs and increase access to 

health and wellness services  

 

Vice Chairwoman Guzman inquired about whether employment will impact their 

participation in the housing program. Miss Butler indicated that it would depend on 

the number of hours worked or the amount of money earned because that will 

determine whether they would still qualify for public housing or not. Vice Chairwoman 

Guzman stated that she is involved with a non-profit organization called Guma. It 

provides free training focused on home-based businesses and indicated that a 

representative from the organization can reach out to Miss Butler to provide her with 

more information that can be shared with the ROSS participants.  

 

Chairman Rivera added that there are a lot of great programs available, especially 

during this time of recovery, and a lot of great opportunities for the housing residents. 

So, the more information that we have on how we can partner with these institutions 

and these services, the better GHURA can increase the lifestyle and livelihood of its 

clients. 

 

[072/22] Director Napoli reported on the following: 

• Governor’s Summer Youth Program 2022- GHURA has been assigned (10) 

Summer interns ages 14-17 years old. They have been placed at our main office 

and at AMPs 1, 2, 3, and 4.  

• GHURA collaboration with partners- GCC, Manelu, and Todu Guam to provide a 

pilot Educational Bootcamp for AMP4 residents. Introduction and registration 

for the bootcamp were held on June 22, 2022.  



GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2022                                                                                  Page 11 of 12 
 

• GHURA and UOG Collaboration- Senior nursing students to visit PH elderly 

residents and those with disabilities to do assessments, make referrals for 

needed services. Faculty will supervise student nurses. MOU under review. 

Ongoing planning,  

• CPD and RP&E Staff attended the grants management training provided by the 

State Clearing House in Adelup. Additional training is forthcoming.  

• Weekly Workout Plan Status meetings with CPD and A/E Staff are ongoing to 

improve the CDBG timeliness expenditures. Timeliness monitoring on August 2, 

2022. Outcome to be reported to the board.  

• All divisions have been notified of the FY2023 budget submission deadlines to 

FISCAL in preparation for board approval in August BOC mtg. 

• Divisions have been notified to submit their dashboard for their required 

timelines 

• HUD visit on August 10, 2022 to attend the Ribbon Cutting of the Section 108 

iLearn Academy Charter School. They also plan to have technical assistance 

trainings. Details are being finalized and information is forthcoming.  

• GHURA’s 60th Anniversary- Planning is ongoing 

• Director Napoli to join the Civil Military Coordination Council- comprised of all 

branches of the military and directors from all agencies to discuss military 

relocation, construction projects, etc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 VI.  GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

1 .   Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Monday, July 25, 2022 

 @ 12:00 p.m. 

 

[073/22] Discussion among the board members regarding the date of the next 

scheduled board meeting. Chairman Rivera requested that the board members 

indicate their availability via email to the GHURA main office. Date of the next 

scheduled board meeting to be determined later.  

 

 

   VII.   ADJOURNMENT   

 
[074/22] Chairman Rivera called to adjourn the meeting at 1:40PM. There were no 
objections from the other board members.  

 

              

 



GHURA Board Meeting Minutes of July 8, 2022                                                                                  Page 12 of 12 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 SEAL                                                                              

   

  

                                                                        

 

 

 ___________________________________________ 

                                                           ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

                                                 Board Secretary / Executive Director 

 

 

 



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 1 of 27



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 2 of 27



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 3 of 27



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 4 of 27



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 5 of 27

greta
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 6 of 27

greta
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 7 of 27

greta
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 8 of 27

greta
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 9 of 27

greta
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 10 of 27

greta
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 11 of 27

greta
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 12 of 27

greta
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 13 of 27

greta
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2022-013 

 
 
Moved By:                                      Seconded By:                            ________ 
 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF MR. FERNANDO B. ESTEVES AS THE 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR  
 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5104, Title 12 of the Guam Code annotated, the Board of 

Commissioners of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (GHURA) is 

given the right and responsibility to govern and control the operations of the 

Authority, and to establish polices for its day-to-day operations, and generally to 

undertake its responsibilities as supreme authority for the Agency; and 

 

WHEREAS, the GHURA Board of Commissioners is empowered to employ a Deputy Director 

who shall serve at the pleasure of the Board; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Deputy Director will be compensated at E-SG3-8(C) $92,496.00 per annum; 

$44.47 per hour  

 

WHEREAS, funding for this position is available under COCC funds; and now therefore be it  

 

RESOLVED,  the Board of Commissioners hereby appoints Mr. Fernando B. Esteves to the 

position of Deputy Director and to be effective Monday, August 1, 2022. 

 

 

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, HAGATNA, GUAM - JULY 26, 2022 

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 

AYES:      

NAYS:                

ABSENT:          

ABSTAINED:    

 

 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy 

of a Resolution duly adopted by the Guam Housing and Urban 

Renewal Authority Board of Commissioners on JULY 26, 2022. 

 

 

( S E A L )                                                    ______________________________ 

 JOHN J. RIVERA 

          Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 14 of 27



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 15 of 27



Family Self-Sufficiency Program 
Status Report:  January 2022 – June 2022             
Prepared By: Sandrina Cepeda 
 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 

Goal – To enable HUD-assisted families to increase their earned income, reduce dependency on 
welfare assistance and rental subsidies, and build financial capability and increase assets. To work in 
collaboration with a Program Coordinating Committee (PCC) to secure commitments of public and 
private resources which enable participants to avail of access to education, job training, and 
employment by linking participants to available community resources. 

The program provides a financial incentive by way of an escrow savings account which participants 
may use to improve their quality of life and advance their personal goals.  Escrow deposits occur 
when the household earnings of FSS participants increase, and lead to an increase in rent. The 
amount of monthly escrow is generally the equivalent of the increase in rental.  Escrow is released 
to families upon successful completion of their FSS obligations under the contract of participation. 
 

Active Participants 138 (S8=108 + PH=30)  Graduates Since Inception   93

Mandated FSS Slots  76  New Recruitments 27 (S8=21 + PH=6)

Progress Reports Processed     137  Portability     1 Family (pending)

EOP     (Section-8) 12  EOP     (Public Housing)     4 

Waitlist (Section-8) 101  Waitlist (Public Housing)   63

 Graduate(s) this reporting period = 4    Total Earned Escrow Payouts = $39,955 
 Processed 137 Progress Reports / Re-Exams (Annual = 73 + Interim = 21 + Enrollments 

= 27 + EOP = 16 
 

PARTICIPANT STATISTICS: 

 TOTAL ACTIVE PARTICIPANTS DURING REPORTING PERIOD:  138 
 108 (78%) Section-8 Participants 
   30 (22%) Public Housing Participants      = AMP 1 =   3 AMP 3 =   1 

AMP 2 = 12 AMP 4 = 14 
 PARTICIPANT AGE RANGE & GENDER: 

 

Section-8 Participants (78%) Public Housing Participants (22%) 

 21-
30 

31-
40 

41-
50 

51-
60 

61-
70 

71+  21-
30 

31-
40 

41-
50 

51-
60 

61-
70 

71+

Male  0 3    5 7 0   0 Male 1 0 1 2 0 0 

Female 16 31 30 14 2   0 Female 3 14 8 1 0 0 

Section-8 Total Participants: 108 Public Housing Total Participants: 30 

 

PARTICIPANT GOALS: 

 

Homeownership 34% (46) Business Owner    3%  (4) 

Employment 13% (19) Purchase a Vehicle/Drivers’ License  17% (24)

GED/High School Diploma 13% (18) College Degree/Certification  20% (27) 

 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 16 of 27



Family Self-Sufficiency Program 
Status Report:  January 2022 – June 2022             
Prepared By: Sandrina Cepeda 
 

 

EARNED INCOME STATISTICS: 

 Average Increased Earnings during this reporting period = $9,341. 
 38 (28%) FSS families increased earned income during this reporting period 

o 26 (69%) of these constitute Head of Household 
o 12 (32%)  of these constitute other Adult Household Member(s) 

 87 (63%) Heads of Household are employed at 1st half 
 10   (7%) of Households gained new employment at 1st half 
 41 (30%) of Heads of Household are unemployed at 1st half 

 

ESCROW STATISTICS:       CUMULATIVE AT JUNE 2022 

 Total Escrow held in Trust =  $189,277.  
o 39%  (54 of 138 Families) hold Escrow: 

 S8  = 42 (39%) of 108 participants ($174,889.) 
 PH = 12 (40%) of   30 participants ($  14,388.) 

 Increased Escrow Earnings = 24 participants (44%) / Average Monthly Increase = $171. 
o Highest Increased Escrow Earnings for this period = $449. 

 Total Cumulative Escrow Payout = $770,306 (Average payout is $8,283.) 
o Largest Escrow Payout, to date = $38,221 (Santos, Corene (S8) = Homeownership) 
o Second Largest Payout, to date = $25,062 (Vidal, Roy (PH) = Permanent Employment 

 
 

VIRTUAL WORKSHOP(S) :  (BUDGETING & RENTERS-101)       

 

Renters-101 Attendees: 31 ABC’s of Credit Attendees: 14 

Basic Banking Attendees: 21 Pathways to Homeownership Attendees: 14 

Basic Budgeting Attendees: 21   

*Of the total Budgeting Participants, 28 were from S8 HCV households, and 7 were from PH households 

*Of the total Renters-101 Participants, 29 were from S8 HCV, and 2 were from PH household 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE TASKS: 

 

Task % Task % 

Partnerships with Service Providers 15% Research Additional Resources  5% 

Outreach & Recruitment 30% Meetings (in-house) 5% 

Documentation of Participant Files 15% Case Management & Client Services 30% 

Total = 100% 
*Multiple Services provided to Individual Participants      *Services offered to all Adult Household Members 
 
 
 
 

 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 17 of 27



Family Self-Sufficiency Program 
Status Report:  January 2022 – June 2022             
Prepared By: Sandrina Cepeda 
 

 

SERVICE COORDINATION PERFORMED: 
 

Workshop Title Participants Workshop Title Participants

GHURA Renewable Affordable Homes  1 Guam Housing Corporation 1 

Housing Counseling 1 American Job Center 16 

GCC Adult Education Program                

GCC Post-Secondary Program 

10 

2            

DPHSS Child Development Block 
Grant 

1 

Financial Education Series: Budgeting 
Basics & Basics of Banking 

21 Financial Education Series: ABC’s of 
Credit & Pathways to Homeownership 

14 

Health Fairs (Outreach & Education)  All Families 
Contacted 

Job Fairs: (Outreach & Education) All Families 
Contacted 

 

OUTREACH & EDUCATION: 

 Employment Opportunities:  All FSS families are contacted and linked with employment 
opportunities by way of job fairs and job announcements.  PC’s meet with families who 
attend, assist with application process, and resume preparation prior to events.  All FSS 
families are contacted and linked with employment opportunities by way of job fairs and job 
announcement notifications (Email, Telephone Calls, One-to-One Appointments); 

o During this reporting period, there were eighteen (18) Job Fairs, some of which 
included: 
 Department of Labor Job Readiness Workshop; 
 Department of Labor Island-Wide Job Fair; 
 University of Guam Annual Job Fair; 
 Guam Department of Education Job Fair; and numerous 
 Hotel and Restaurant, Telecommunications, & Service Industry Job Fairs  

o Networking opportunities with potential employers are taken to discuss the FSS 
program with attending Human Resources personnel 

 Training/Certification Program Opportunities:  FSS families are linked with Program 
Coordinating Committee Partners to assist FSS participants with moving into the workforce.  
Entrepreneurial and Certification/Training opportunities afforded to FSS families include: 

o GUMA (Guam Unique Merchandise & Art) Entrepreneurial Training Program 
Orientation, I Bisinum Mami, for those interested in starting a home-based business; 

o Guam Community College (GCC) Bootcamps (includes Ship Repair Certification, 
Diesel Mechanic Certification, Bus Driver Certification & Childcare Certification 
Programs 

o Department of Labor /American Job Center:  Job Readiness Workshop, Hospitality 
Training, and Telecommunications Training; 

o Scholarship Opportunities:  In partnership with the Guam Bureau of Women’s 
Affairs (GBWA) the GBWA Scholarship Review Committee has awarded five (5) 
FSS program participants with “I Nina’metgot Famalao’an” adult high school program 
scholarships. FSS Program Coordinators selected 5 Female Heads of Household, 
with children who listed “Obtain High School Diploma” as their Final Goal.  
Program Coordinators worked closely with them to prepare their application 
packets, and ensure submission before the deadline. Participants were also required 
to submit a short essay about how they believe they would benefit from the award  

 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 18 of 27



Family Self-Sufficiency Program 
Status Report:  January 2022 – June 2022             
Prepared By: Sandrina Cepeda 
 

 

OUTREACH & EDUCATION (CONTINUED): 

(i.e to secure gainful employment, to advance their career, or continue with post-
secondary education).  Scholarship awards amount to $500 each, and covers the cost 
of testing fees.  Any monies remaining are provided directly to the participant.  

 Health Fairs:  FSS Coordinators regularly provide families with health fair information to 
include wellness checks, immunization clinics, dental clinics, and etc. Health Outreach 
opportunities include: 

o Department of Public Health and Social Services Immunization clinics; 
o Guam Behavioral Health & Wellness Clinic Crisis Hotline & Counseling Services;  
o Guam Behavioral Health & Wellness Children’s Mental Health Jamboree; 
o Todu Guam Foundation Adult Medical Outreach (Adult Physical Exams, Blood 

Sugar Checks, etc.) 
o Todu Guam Foundation School-aged children (Immunization & Annual Physical 

outreach) 
 Provide flyers, applications and contact information to potential participants via AMP 

resources; Maintain contact with potential participants currently wait-listed to sustain their 
interest and enthusiasm; Include wait-listed participants on communications intended for 
current participants (ie: Job Fairs, Job Announcements, Health Fairs, etc); 

 FSS Coordinators continue to participate in online webinars offered through HUD and the 
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, relative to financial coaching, housing certification, 
and running an effective FSS program; 

 FSS Coordinators maintain an affiliation with Compass Working Capital via their FSS link.  
CWC provides Coordinators with coaching programs intended to empower FSS families as 
they build assets, and achieve financial goals such as prioritizing debt, building effective 
budgets, and other feasible discussions. The website also affords for the opportunity to 
network with other FSS programs across the United States, for ideas, problem solving, and 
other FSS related topics. 

 Over the course of the past month, Team FSS with the assistance of our Guam Summer 
Youth Employment Program participant has completed the winten2+ scanning and 
shredding of 84 expired participant files. This is a continuation of the 2021 project, which 
helped to ensure that participant information remains safe in the event of natural disasters, 
freed up much needed office space, and ensured a smaller FSS footprint; 

 Program Coordinators regularly seek out free family/community activities to share with FSS 
participants, which encourage and promote family time activities, such as the Tango Theater 
Free Family Movie Night(s). 

 Toys-for-Tots 2021 (Annual Event); 
o FSS received a total of 172 gifts from GHURA’s staff and management.  All 

GHURA families with children aged 0 – 17 were invited to participate in choosing 
the gift of their choice. 

 Guam System for Assistive Technology (GSAT) Expo was held at the Agana Shopping 
Center in April 2022.  The expo aims to assist and support individuals with disabilities, their 
families, and seniors.  Team FSS invited FSS families who meet the criteria to attend and 
participate. Team FSS was in attendance for one-to-one assistance as they presented 
themselves, as well as outreach for new enrollees.  

 Peer Representation:  Introduce potential participants to current or previous participants 
and/or successful graduates; provide them with first-hand information on their personal 
experiences, successes, and growth while in the program; 
 
 

 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 19 of 27



Family Self-Sufficiency Program 
Status Report:  January 2022 – June 2022             
Prepared By: Sandrina Cepeda 
 

 

GRADUATES: 

 
During the first half of Calendar Year 2022, the FSS Program successfully graduated 4 participants.  
The 4 participants effectively completed all activities outlined in their respective Individual Training 
and Services Plan (ITSP), as well as attained both their Interim and Final Goals.  A brief description 
of these goals is listed below.  Participant testimonials are attached for reference. 
 

Participant: Program: Final Goal: Completion 
Date: 

Escrow 
Award: 

WALICHU, Joyce S8-HCV Employment/Career February 22 $  9,113.27
DUKE, Aubriani S8-HCV Prepare for Homeownership May 22 $        0.00
CORPUS, Karl PH Purchase a Vehicle March 22 $12,865.58
CANDOLETA, Alisha S8-HCV Obtain Accounting Degree June 22 $18,031.78

 
*In the case of Aubriani Duke, enrollment began September 2021, with a final goal of Preparing for Homeownership.  
She was a very active FSS participant, and joined in on numerous FSS related activities. At March 2022, the households 
adjusted monthly income exceeded FMR for her unit size, which made her eligible for graduation. Unfortunately, she 
was not entitled to escrow during her period of participation.  The household opted out of remaining under the S8-
HCV for 6 months, ending their participation.  
 
 
 
 

 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 20 of 27



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 21 of 27



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 22 of 27



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 23 of 27



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 24 of 27



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 25 of 27



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 26 of 27



 
Board Meeting of July 26, 2022

 
PAGE 27 of 27




